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Mennoville Church is a virtual prototype of the small, early-day
rural church building - a roughly 30 x 40-foot rectangle with a gabled
projecting entryway, all of frame construction and simple in design.
Both sanctuary and lower entry have unbroken hipped roofs. A brick - .
chimney centers the solid back (west) wall. Side walls north and
south are evenly spaced by four tall, narrow, two-pane, double-sakh .
windows, each topped by a plain, triangular pedimented head. The
east entry has recessed double doors, each containing three narrow
lights so arched as to complement the pitch of the entry and church
itself. Five small windows in a horizontal bank ornament the entry
facade above the doorway. They are topped by a simple cartouche
reading MENNONITE CHURCH. Cost of the church when built in 1894 is
not known. Much of the labor involved was undoubtedly donated. It
is recorded, however, that the stones used in the foundation cost $6.
The original lap siding has now been covered with white asphalt tiles,
the wood shingles with composite shingles. Structurally, however,
the exterior is unchanged.

Interior of the Mennoville church was, and remains, quite plain,
Somewhat unusual (not to say effective) is finish of the solid back
wall beyond the one-step-up altar area. Above the simple wainscoting,
narrow finishing boards are vaulted against the centering chimney pile
so as to again complement the pitch of the church's hipped roof.
Floor is of bare pine. The church never had regular pews and its

~straight back chairs have now disappeared. Otherwise the sanctuary
is little changed from the way it was whan it accommodated the 1894
Christmas program. '
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TATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Mennoville Mennonite Church, built in 1894, is the oldest
existing structure pertaining to the Mennonite faith in what is now
Oklahoma. The Mennoville congregation, organized in 1891, was the
faith's first in Oklahoma. And it, in turn, was something of a
spiritual legancy of the Mennonite mission and industrial boarding
school, opened at nearby Darlington in 1881, Darlington itself
represents the initial missionary effort by any church group on
behalf of the Indians of western Oklahoma. Although the congregation
was never large, and was officially disbanded two decades ago,
Mennoville played a significant role in the life of this agricultural
community for more than half a century.

*

The Mennoville church stands as a modest memorial to the faith
of twelve pioneering Mennonite families - of Swiss, German, and
German-Russian stock - who came from Berne, Ind,, to take up land in
this area when it was first opened to white settlement. Interestingly
enough, the section line running north-south on the east side of the
church property was the dividing line between 01d Oklahoma, opened
by "run" in 1889, and the Cheyenne and Arapaho Indian Reservation,
similarly opened in 1892,

The congregation was formed in 1891, with 16 families participating.
It had 27 charter members and the Rev. Joel Sprunger was chosen to
be the first minister. For two years the congregation met in the various
church homes. Then in late 1894 a two-acre site for a church 2nd
adjoining cemetery was purchased - for $10.00 - and a Mr. Wilking was
hired to erect the simple frame structure that still stands. It was
apparently completed by Dec. 24, 1894, An early chronicler states:
"™We celebrated the first Christmas in the Mennonite Church. We even
had a tree." : :

Services were held at Mennoville until 1953, when a shrinking
farm population cut membership to the vanishing point. (Mennonites
were then and remain today largely agricultural.) For six years the
church was unused. Then in 1959 the congregation was officially
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disbanded, the building turned over to the Western District Conference
of Mennonites. The Conference now cares for both building and cemetery,
which is still in use. An historical marker was unveiled at the stie
in 1972, which hails it as "a continuous reminder of the rugged faith
of pioneers to this area."

In recommending Mennoville for the National Register the
Canadian County Historical Society calls attention to the church's
"rich history of service in this pioneer neighborhood and down
through the years . . ." It also points out that Mennonite influence
in the area goes back another ten years or so - that is, to the middle
1870s, when the General Conference began investigating the possibility
of mission work among the Indians. Initial contact was made with Quaker
Indian Agent John Miles in 1877 - at nearby Darlington (placed in the
National Register Aug. 14, 1973). The Mennonite mission and industrial
boarding school were opened in 1881 - the first for the Plains Indians
of western Oklahoma. It was this group of mission workers that helped
organize the Mennoville Church in 1891,



